VL.

OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2025

Meeting to be Called to Order by Chair Vernon D. Burns at 5:00 PM.
Letters and Communications to the Board.
Approval of Board Minutes

A. September 2025

Reports
A. Presentations and Reports:

1. Committee Reports
i. Personnel Committee Report

2. Reports
i. Financial Reports
ii. Bridge Traffic Report
iii. Airport Activity Report
iv. Airport Event Report
v. Port Activity Report
vi. Economic Development Report, including Building Occupancy

Unfinished Business
Business ltems

A. General Administration
1.Approval of Management/Confidential Salary Schedule
2.Approval of Administration Building Tenant Entry Door Upgrade
B. Ogdensburg International Bridge
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 7 with Barbara Pleet
C. Commerce Park
1. Approval of New Lease Agreement with Phillip MacGibbon LLC DBA
Bluebird
D. Ogdensburg International Airport
1. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Pete Bogardus
2. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Keith Weston
3. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Bird Tate
E. Port of Ogdensburg
1. Approval of Cost for Returning Incorrectly Loaded Metal Beam with Texas
Iron and Metal Company Inc.
2. Approval of Excavator and Mulching Attachment Rental with Anderson
Equipment
3. Approval of Cost to Fix the Damaged Port Security Fence
F. New York & Ogdensburg Railroad
1. None
G. Border Station
1. None
H. Other Such Matters
1. Approval of Replacement of Network Equipment and IT Service Provider




VIl.  Next Meeting Dates:

December 11, 2025 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
January 8, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
February 12, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
March 12, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
April 9, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
May 14, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
June 11, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
July 9, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
August 13, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
September 10, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
October 8, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
November 12, 2026 Thursday 5:00 PM (Proposed)
IX. Adjournment.

2/ ~
Dated: November 6, 2025 ( i éw

Steven J. Lawrence
Executive Director

Board of Directors: Staff: Press:

Mr. Vemnon D. “Sam” Burns, Chair Mr. Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director Mr. Tom Graser, WDT

Ms. Megan J.M. Whitton, Vice Chair Ms. Patricia Nisco, Chief Financial Officer Ms. Monica Sandreszki, North Country Public Radio
Ms. Nicole Terminelli, Treasurer Mr. Anthony Adamczyk, Dir. of Economic Development.  Ms. Dawn Merz, Radio Station WNCQ/WPAC

Ms. Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, Secretary Mr. James Chase, Director of Operations Mr. Jimmy Lawton, North Country Now

Mr. David King, Member Mr. Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager Mr. Jim Levin, Community Broadcasters

Ms. Toni Squires, Member Ms. Susan Davis, Airport Event Coordinator

Ms. Diane Para, Member Ms. Andrea Loran, Executive Accountant



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2025

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority was held in the
Board Room of the Administration Building on Thursday, September 18, 2025 at 5:00 PM.

The following were present:

ALSO:

Vernon D. Burns, Chairperson

Megan J. M. Whitton, Vice-Chairperson
Nicole Terminelli, Treasurer

Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, Secretary

Toni Squires, Member

Diane Para, Member

Jennifer Granzow, Counsel

Steven J. Lawrence, Executive Director

Andrea Loran, Executive Accountant

Anthony Adamczyk, Director of Economic Development
James D. Chase, Director of Operations

Charlie Garrelts, Airport Manager

Susan Davis, Airport Event Coordinator

ABSENT: David King, Member

Patricia A. Nisco, Chief Financial Officer

Vernon D. Burns, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.

Letters and Communications to the Board. Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence shared

an email from Dr. Beane from Canton expressing his concern over the Bridge road between
Customs and the Bridge and asking if there is a plan to pave soon. Executive Director, Steven J.
Lawrence responded that Dr. Beane’s comments are well received and assured him that they will
be taken seriously. A resurfacing project for the U.S. approach roadways will be put out to bid in
November with construction planned for May 2026. In the meantime, spot pavement repairs will
begin in September to help smooth travel conditions until the full project is underway.

Approval of Board Minutes:

August 2025

On a motion made by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, seconded by Diane Para, the meeting minutes
were approved.

Board Chair, Vernon D. Burns, asked Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, if there was a need
for Executive Session. Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence, stated there was no need for
Executive Session at this time.

Reports
1. Presentations and Reports
i. None



2. Reports
Financial Report Executive Accountant, Andrea Loran shared the financials.

Highlights from the Balance Sheet - Statement of Financial Position for the month
ending July 31, 2025 - As of July 31, 2025 Accounts Receivables are $196,035
with 96% being current or within 1 — 30 days past due.

Fuel Inventory at the end of July was at 12,908 gallons.

We have $49,921 in prepaid expenses which is for the commercial insurance
policies. The July monthly expense for insurances was $40,751.65. Most of
these policies renewed in August so we can expect to see this amount change.

In Accounts Payables we have $5,103,047.53, $4,972,684 were checks written to
Murnane and McFarland which we had not been reimbursed for yet.

Highlights from the Budget to Actual reports - Bridge revenue remains under the
budgeted assumption of 87%.

Overall income is under budget due to some ships coming in in June, which was
earlier than we had anticipated.

Overall expenses for July were budgeted at $654,235 and our actuals expenses
were $624,012 leaving us under budget by $30,222.

Bridge Traffic Report

Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence reported that the bridge crossing numbers
are settling. Anticipate October showing greater numbers Columbus Day through
Veteran’s Day with Holiday travel.

Overall crossings are down 35% as compared to 2019 and down 30% as
compared to 2024.

Airport Activity Report

Airport Manager Charlie Garrelts reported there were 31 flights out of OGS and no
cancellations in 5 months. Enplanements were 1,500 up 35%.

Expecting to reach 10,000 enplanements by the end of September.

Airport Manager Charlie Garrelts attended the Breeze conference the week of
September 7" and shared the following facts: Breeze has been rated the 5 Star
Best Airline by APEX (Airline Passenger Experience Association), Breeze is
currently in 78 cities and 35 states, Breeze focuses on underserved cities and has
turned profitable already. They have brand new airbuses, brand new pilots, and
lots of training.

In Q2 they were at $239 million and have a 29% awareness rating. Completions
are at 100% with continued delays caused on the IAD end.

Lukas Johnson, COO, previously with Allegiant, said they will beat 2021 numbers
in less flights.

Ms. Quirk-Pickman asked for Canadian traveler data.

Ms. Para reported that anyone she has talked to at SUNY Canton has been very
enthusiastic about traveling with Breeze.

Airport Event Report

Event Coordinator, Susie Davis shared that she had the opportunity to plan and
coordinate the Breeze Airways Inaugural Flight Celebration for the new Raleigh-
Durham (RDU) route. This was a significant event for the airport and our
community, guests enjoyed the celebration and feedback was positive and
encouraging.



\'%

vi.

Efforts to secure food and facility services for the airport have not been finalized
but efforts are ongoing and initial conversations are underway. Finding the right fit
to support airport operations while also providing added value to passengers and
community members is a priority.

In late August, Event Coordinator, Susie Davis attended the Business-to-Business
networking event on behalf of the airport. It was a valuable opportunity to introduce
herself and to speak about the upcoming event space. She made some strong
connections that she believes could potentially lead to future partnerships.

She also reported that she is managing and updating the OGS Facebook page
and in the past few days follower numbers have tripled helping to increase
community engagement and visibility. She encourages everyone to check it out!
Lastly, she has been actively reaching out to local and regional businesses to
introduce herself and begin building relationships, raise awareness about the new
event space and generate interest for future bookings once the project is
complete.

Ms. Para mentioned with the closing of the OFA Golden Dome for the upcoming
season the Boys and Girls Club will be looking for a space for their annual Expo in
March. Executive Director, Steven J. Lawrence reminded everyone that we do not
want to replace existing relationships but if they were to approach us for a
temporary solution, we would welcome it.

Port Activity Report

Director of Operations, James Chase reported 34 outbound trucks, one inbound
railcar and two unloaded railcars.

Continued communication with salt companies, we can expect another 2-3
vessels. Local DOT’s and towns are filling their salt barns; Five steel beam loads
have left.

Annual Coast Guard inspection went well.

Economic Development Report

Director of Economic Development, Anthony Adamczyk, reported building
occupancy remains the same.

Hoagies and More will not be renewing their lease.

There are active negotiations for Building 3 and Building 4 may have a short-term
tenant

Unfinished Business

1. None



Vi Business ltems

a. General Administration

1. Approval of Boiler repair at the Administration Building. On a motion from Megan J.M.
Whitton, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, it was

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a Purchase Order with Northern Mechanical to repair the Boiler System at the
Administration Building, a total cost not to exceed $27,000.00.

A vote was called

AYES: Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires

MOTION CARRIED

2. Approval of FVD Engineering Services to perform Engineering, Design, Permitting,
and Bid Support. On a motion from Diane Para, seconded by Toni Squires, it was,

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a Purchase Order with FVD Engineering Services, a total not to exceed
$78,150.00.

A vote was called

AYES: Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli

MOTION CARRIED



b. Oagdensburg International Bridge

1.

Approval of Lease Agreement with the State University of New York. On a motion from
Nicole Terminelli, seconded by Megan J.M. Whitton, it was,

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute
a Lease Agreement with the State University of New York for 1,054 square feet of
office space in Suite 104 of the Bridge Administration Building for a three (3) year
period commencing July 1, 2025 and terminating June 30, 2028 at a rate of $1,000
per month, $12,000 annually during the term of the Agreement, inclusive of utilities.

A vote was called

AYES: Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para

MOTION CARRIED

Approval of Use Permit — Ogdensburg City School District. On a motion from Toni
Squires, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, it was,

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute
a Use Permit with the Ogdensburg City School District for use of Authority property at
the Bridge Plaza from September 8, 2025 through October 31, 2025 for their Varsity
and Modified Cross-Country Track Team practices and home meets.

A vote was called

AYES: Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman

MOTION CARRIED



¢. Commerce Park

1.

Approval of HVAC repair at the Commerce Park Campus Building 14, Med. Eng.
On a motion from Megan J.M. Whitton, seconded by Diane Para, it was

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a Purchase Order with TRANE to repair of the HVAC unit at the
Commerce Park Campus Building 14, Med Eng, a total cost not to exceed
$7,471.00.

A vote was called

AYES: Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton

MOTION CARRIED

Approval of roof repair at the Commerce Park Campus Building 3. On a motion
from Megan J.M. Whitton, seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, it was

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to
execute a Purchase Order with RS| Roofing to repair of the Roof at the Commerce
Park Campus Building 3, a total cost not to exceed $36,500.00.

A vote was called

AYES: Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires

MOTION CARRIED

d. Ogdensburg International Airport

1.

Approval of Engineering Change Notice ECN-01 with McFarland Johnson for
Extension of Construction Phase Services. On a motion from Nicole Terminelli,
seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, it was

RESOLVED, that the Board of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority hereby
authorizes and approves Engineering Change Notice ECN-01 in a total amount not to
exceed $200,022.00, to be issued McFarland Johnson, with such funds to be drawn
from Allowance #1 of the Gateway Improvements Terminal Renovations Project (PIN
7903); and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to take
all necessary actions to execute the Engineering Change Notice and ensure proper
incorporation into the project records and documentation.

A vote was called

AYES: Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli

NO: Vernon D. Burns
MOTION CARRIED

. Approval of Change Orders with Murnane Building Contractors. On a motion from
Nicole Terminelli, seconded by Megan J.M. Whitton, it was

RESOLVED, that the Board of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority hereby
authorizes and approves Change Order Nos. 0122 and 024, in a total amount not to
exceed $62,374.00, to be issued to Murnane Building Contractors, with such funds to
be drawn from Allowance #1 of the Gateway Improvements Terminal Renovations
Project (PIN 7903); and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to take
all necessary actions to execute these Change Orders and ensure their proper
incorporation into the project records and documentation.

A vote was called

AYES: Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para

MOTION CARRIED



3. Approval to authorize the Execution of the Legal Services Agreement Related to the

AFFF Product Liability Litigation. On a motion from Nicole Terminelli, seconded by Toni
Squires,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors that the Executive
Director of the Authority is hereby authorized to execute the Legal Services’
Agreement with the Firm based upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and, in
a manner, substantially similar to the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

A vote was called

AYES: Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman

MOTION CARRIED

e. Port of Ogdensburg

1.

Approval Use Permit — Seaway Six Pack Throwdown Fishing Tournament. On a
motion from Toni Squires, seconded by Megan J.M. Whitton, it was

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute
a Use Permit with the Seaway Six Pack Throwdown Fishing Tournament for use of
Port property on September 25, 2025 through September 28, 2025 for their fishing
tournament.

A vote was called

AYES: Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns

MOTION CARRIED

f. New York & Ogdensburg Railroad
None

g. Border Station
None



h. Other Such Matters

1.

Approval authorizing replacement of Avgas Storage Tank. On a motion from Toni
Squires, seconded by Nicole Terminelli, it was

RESOLVED that the Board authorizes the Executive Director to purchase and install a
replacement Avgas storage tank from LaValley Bros. Construction in the amount of
$36,515.00 for a new Avgas storage tank and installation, and from Sun
Environmental Corp in the amount of $3,955.00 for safe disposal of contaminated fuel,
at a total cost not to exceed $40,470.00

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is authorized to execute all
necessary agreements, purchase orders, and related documents to carry out this
procurement in accordance with OBPA policies and funding requirements.

A vote was called

AYES: Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton

MOTION CARRIED

Approval of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 — Federal Aid Local Project Agreement
(PIN 7754.28) for the Ogdensburg -Prescott Bridge Maintenance and Rehabilitation
Project. On a motion by Nicole Terminelli, seconded by Toni Squires,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board, duly convened
does hereby,

RESOLVE, that the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority hereby approve the above-
subject project; and it is hereby further,

RESOLVED, that the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority to pay
in the first instance 100% of the federal and non-federal share of the cost of
$9,916,000 work for the Project or portions thereof; and it is further;

RESOLVED, that the sum of the $9,916,000 is hereby appropriated from the
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority’s Capital Budget and made available to cover
the cost of participation in the above a phase of the Project; and it is further;

RESOLVED that in the event the full federal and non-federal share costs of the project
exceed the amount appropriated above, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
Board of Directors shall convene as soon as possible to appropriate said excess
amount immediately upon the notification by the Executive Director thereof, and it is
further,;



RESOLVED, that the Executive Director of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
be and is hereby named as the Responsible Local Official (RLO) for the Ogdensburg
Bridge and Port Authority and is authorized to execute all necessary Agreements,
certifications or reimbursement requests for the Federal Aid on behalf of the
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board of Directors with the New York State
Department of Transportation in connection with the advancement or approval of the
Project and providing for the administration of the Project and the Authority’s first
instance funding of project costs and permanent funding of the local share of federal-
aid and state-aid eligible Project costs and all Project costs within appropriations
therefore that are not-so eligible, and it is further;

RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be filed with the New York State
Commissioner of Transportation by attaching it to any necessary Agreement in
connection with the Project, and it is further;

RESOLVED, this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

A vote was called

AYES: Nicole Terminelli
Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires

MOTION CARRIED

. Approval of Master Agreement to add Construction Phase Funding for the US Bridge
Approach Paving Project— Federal Aid Local Project Agreement (PIN 7754.29). On a
motion by Toni Squires, seconded by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman,

WHEREAS, a Project for the OBPA — US Bridge Approach Paving Rehabilitation,
P.I.N. 7754.29 (“the Project”) is eligible for funding under Title 23 U.S. Code, as
amended, subject to the terms of Master Agreement to add Construction Phase
Funding for the US Bridge Approach Paving as shown in the Schedule A of this
agreement.

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to advance the Project,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board, duly convened
does hereby,

RESOLVE, that the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority hereby approves the
above-subject project; and it is hereby further,;

RESOLVED, that the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority to pay



Vil

VIl

in the first instance 100% of the federal and non-federal share of the cost of
$3,084,000 work for the Project or portions thereof; and it is further;

RESOLVED, that the sum of the $3,084,000 is hereby appropriated from the
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority’s Capital Budget and made available to cover
the cost of participation in the above a phase of the Project; and it is further;

RESOLVED that in the event the full federal and non-federal share costs of the project
exceeds the amount appropriated above, the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
Board of Directors shall convene as soon as possible to appropriate said excess
amount immediately upon the notification by the Executive Director thereof, and it is
further;

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority
be and is hereby named as the Responsible Local Official (RLO) for the Ogdensburg
Bridge and Port Authority and is authorized to execute all necessary Agreements,
certifications or reimbursement requests for the Federal Aid on behalf of the
Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board of Directors with the New York State
Department of Transportation in connection with the advancement or approval of the
Project and providing for the administration of the Project and the Authority’s first
instance funding of project costs and permanent funding of the local share of federal-
aid and state-aid eligible Project costs and all Project costs within appropriations
therefore that are not so eligible, and it is further;

RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be filed with the New York State
Commissioner of Transportation by attaching it to any necessary Agreement in
connection with the Project, and it is further;

RESOLVED, this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

A vote was called

AYES: Diane Para
Jennifer Quirk-Pickman
Vernon D. Burns
Megan J.M. Whitton
Toni Squires
Nicole Terminelli

MOTION CARRIED
Concluding Comments from Citizens, Board Members, and/or Authority Staff

Joe LaFountain, Bridge Maintenance Crew and CSEA President introduced himself to the Board
and explained that he was there to see how the Board meetings were conducted and observe.

Next Meeting Date



The next Board meeting was proposed for Thursday, October 9, 2025 at 5:00 PM. Diane Para
and Jennifer Quirk-Pickman are unable to make the meeting; Susan will poll the Board to see if
other dates will work better.

Adjournment

On a motion by Jennifer Quirk-Pickman, seconded by Megan J.M. Whitton, the meeting
adjourned at 6:15 P

) _
KJJM A / ///Q%’%w a"’/ﬂ” ;%l/f%&
—— 7

Jennifer Quirk-Pickman Vernon D. Burns
Secretary Chairperson




(2656'69) 92£'398 £82'8€6 901°2. 626G Lve 6L7'691 SISNIdXT LHOdHIY TV.LOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 asuadx3 aoedg Juaag
(2£1°2€) €911 005'8y (290'8) gEY 005°8 asuadx3 [ebe
GOE'LY 0€.'€9 GZy'ez 0¢.'6 6EE'ElL 609°C asuadx3 Jsassju|
(162'¢2) \r.292 Z67'9¢¢€ (615'2L) vES'SY £80°05 sesuadx3 [eJouaD)
(090°'glL) 060°2E 051'0S (216'L) ££8'G 0S.°2 ssuadx3 Anan
(89'se) #52'G9 206'06 918'82 199'LY Ghe'gl asuadx3 sales |an4
£¥5'95 96168 £59'2¢ £98'CS £9€°'2S 00S‘y asuadx3 soueusjulepy
9¢.l'Cc 061'G6 ¥St'26 €09'y Zot'0¢ 698°GZ sjyeusg avAoldw3
(#¥6'G)) £9/'8¥2 202792 (22€°1) 9682y €12'vP asuadxg Aejes
ISNIIXT LHOJHIV
(150'gL) Z8Z'GL9'L £78'829'L S0v'6 0EL'viE 6Z.'v0€ SISNIIXI 39aIyg TV.LOL
8vv'G6 SY6'CLL 0058 810'0lL 892'0¢ 0SZ'0l asuadx3 [ebe
8£9'6C 992 'v0¢ 891°0.2 6.2'€ 10€'8y 8Z0'GP sosuadx3 [eiauaD)
(95¥'g) PPL'GE 009'€y (06€) 0199 0002 asuadx3 Annn
1860 | 6262 966°0F LE6°LE ve'8e cir'o asuadx3 aoueusjuley abpug
(6EF‘0L) L68°/€ 06Z'8¥ (66'v) 961'E Gri'g asuadx3g aoueusjulepy
(855°92) 990°'182 Pv9°2GE (18s°L2) 852'8/ 6£8'66 siijeuag saiojdwy
(599'vS) 8/6'v¥. £79°66. (€06'Y) ¥8'2Zl | 052221 asuadx3g Auees
JISNILXT 30a1yg
SISNIdX3
680°¢6¢€ 0LL°669°C L20°608‘c (GL8°cct) £98°6¥S 8.9°€89 JWOIN! TV.L0L
¥6.v2 v6.vC 0 0 0 0 anudNaY peoljiey
266991 266'891 0 SOv'vi SOV vy 0 BLIOU| JS8IB)U[ - [RUILLIS | BULIEB
168601 9/8'669 620°'065 (Lyv'6L1L) #£9'0€ G/0'0L2 anuBASY (110d) jeuiis ] auliepy
08€‘cLl 99¢ ‘895 986 vG 928'6 659'G8 L£8'G/ 8NUBAY SnAwey yied 924aWWoD
(00£'v) 0 00€‘t (061°2) 0 0SL'Z 90BdS JUBAT - anudASY LodlY
128°9€ 882'8.1 LIV IpL £25'6 06€'0Y 198'0¢ S8feg 1ah4 - snusAsy Lodily
¥62'€61 Lib'2LE L1641 98G'v¢ 0£9'€9 0'62 anuansy podiy
(v6.°'8¥C) 28£'089°1 | 9/1°GE6°1L (995°0S) SP1'6.¢ LLL'62ZE anuanay abpug
IWOONI
(4opun) [enoy 1e6png (4spun) [enoy jebpng
HINO alA ala J2:NNe) Alyyuon Ajypuoy

TYNLOV Ol 1390N8 S¢02 YIFFNILdIS -ALIMOHLNY LHOd ? FOUIHIE O4NGSNITOO




(82L'v¥2) (c8Z°ccy) ((sso7)uren joN) IWOINI ONILVHIJO
ogi'gL, 0 - 0 A = [eyded % s308foid 40 UoIIOd YadO
gze'ee9 0 - égolery @ Y 80IMI8S Jq8Q
09.°209 (8z8°L) (851°48) Zre'sL ((sso7)yuten jeN) IWOINI ONILVHIJO
(oos9L2) 6V£°960° 6v8zic’s 58992 L20°2€9 9££809 S3ISNIdXT TV.LOL
SpeZ'ee S¥Z'ee 0 LSS Les'e 0 SISNIAXT NOILYLS ¥3aH0g
0 0 0 0 0 0 SISNIdXT avodTIvy
(612°21L1) 109'GEY Z88'7SS (Z81'6€) 9/%'89 959°201 SISNIJXT TYNIWEIL INISYN TYLOL
(L¥9°21) £58'9 00S'¥2 (062'1) 0 052t asuadx3 |ebaT
(008'9) 0 008'8 (002'2) 0 0022 asuadx3 jsasey|
(ev1°29) 658°LLL Z00'691 (60€'2L) 868Gl 191'82 sasuadx3 |eaus9)
(20.°8) £16'22 089'LE Sl Py 200y asuadx3 Annn
(716°G1) 12206 1¥9'901 (6182) 9e8'/1 669°02 asuadx3 soueusjuiei
66111 06102 16985 (9¢£5°c) Z0E'TL 8€8°L1 sjyeuag aakojdw3
(£98'02) 50221 89G'€G1 (zLz'zel) vee'sl 9¥5'0e asuadx3 Areles
JSNIIXT (LHOd) TYNINETL INISYW
(z26'8P) 6L6'Ch1 L8261 (921°21) 8GE'6 ¥£5'92 SISNIdXI M¥VYd TVIMLSNANI TV.LOL
(005'2) 0 0052 (0sZ'L) 0 0SZ'} sasuadx] [ebe
l8¥'C 192°€t 08.'6 L0l 1292 0£9°L asuadx3 jsasely|
(ssv'S) | €€2'62 88l LE (858°L) ove'e 861'G sasuadxj [eJous)
(89¥'26) | 8ls'le 996'v6 (8¥S¥L) (201°¢) Lo LL asuadx3 AN
112'82 | 159t 088Gl £e 6,81 9v8'l asuadx3 eoueuljuie|
(¢Le'2) | G66°1 10€'6 (£50°}) 68¢ orv'L sjjauag aakojdwy
(yii'E) | 962°02 | 00Z'¥Z | Y9V | [8L'Y €2L'E asuadxg Alejeg
ISNIIXI XYV FOHINNWOD
(4opun) {enjoy Jebpng (49pun) [enoy 1ebpng
[18A0 ala alA J2:1\e) Alguopy Alupuon




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as of September 30, 2025

Current Assets:
Cash - Checking Accounts $ 254,946
Cash - Reserves & Other Restricted Accounts 11,414,168
Cash - Security Deposits 152,285
Accounts Receivable - Regular 172,273
Grants Receivable 3,053,362
Investments -
Inventories 12,908
Prepaid Expenses 401,873
Total Current Assets $ 15,461,814
Fixed Assets:
Land & Land Improvements $ 48,424,249
Buildings & Building Improvements 108,711,370
Machinery & Equipment 8,946,184
Vehicles 2,018,770
Furniture & Fixtures 142,506
Signage 181,132
Bond Issuance Costs - 2017 Series 157,054
Total Fixed Assets $ 168,581,265
Less Accumulated Depreciation (86,943,376)
Net Fixed Assets $ 81,637,889
Other Assets: 1,193,640

<«

Construction in Progress 24,681,304

TOTAL ASSETS § 122,974,646

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable - Regular 89,797
Accounts Payable - NYS Retirement

Accounts Payable - All Project A/P 2,458,747

Current Portion of Long Term Debt $ 1,090,578

Accrued Expenses 22,661,072

Total Current Liabilities 26,300,194

Other General Liabilities 2,991,893

Long Term Liabilities

Long Term Portion of Long Term Debt 6,966,878

Total Long Term Liabilities 6,966,878

Capital 86,715,681

TOTAL LIABILITIES 122,974,646
0




Restricted Accounts - Top 5 Bank Accounts
Royal Bank of Canada Investment
Consolidated Reserve Fund - CBNA

Debt Service Reserve Fund - Wilmington Trust
Tompkins Trust Security Reserve Deposit
M&T Bond Reserve Funds

8 Additional Restricted Bank Accounts share the balance

Construction in Progress - Top 4 Projects
Airport Revitalization Project

Airport EA PH 1 Drainage & Terminal Area
Port - Dock Wall Expansion

CIP - Building Construction (Childcare Bldg)

6 Additional Projects share the balance
Regular Accounts Payable - Top 10 Vendors

Excellus

National Grid

Gerhart Systems
Strategic Development
Trudeau Sand & Gravel
M Baldock

30 +/- Additional Vendors share the balance

6,137,881
3,906,272
570,759
248,210
218,833

11,081,955

332,213

19,841,710
2,167,617
794,439
437,401

23,241,167

1,440,136

41,211
11,583
6,322
6,000
3,873
3,610

72,599

17,198



0

0508818
SZriL'IES
059.8°15%
G/°£L6'G8S
gz0zi'98¢
G1966C4L8
GZ'€61L°921L8
STEELPELS
00°96£°604L$
G1°6r0268

ss07
awoouy
Apgpuopy

SZ0ct'L¥83

1paj Jepusjes i0j oNUBASY JO SSOT

SNOSIHVdNOD ® SFUNOIH JiddV¥L FOAIHg
ALIMOHLNY L¥0Od pue 390alg D4NGSNIAO0

0S'¥8Z'189'1% | Seveg'6e8S | %v0ze- | 6v209S | 1bL'08E | %6S¥L- | Z8¥'v9 | 2/0GS %ieve- | 292°66¥ | 699'¢ze | SIVLIOL
SZv8L'v0L$ G1'€0€'68$ %6LG- | L06°LY | 91t'6E %19'6- ¥EZ'9 | GE9'G %Ch'S- 199'GE L¥8'eE Kienuer
 GZ'€90'90LS | 00'6VEWLS | %S28L- | 92SL¥ | BEL'EE %106 299's | zsl's %62 0Z- $98'Ge | /8G'8z | Aenigeg
0S'€€L'8Z1% 00258'9.$ | %880¢- 85505 = 8V6'PE | %IZ0O | SE0'9 150'0 %0L'GE- | €ZS'h¥ 168'82 yotep
00°GE9'VS1$ GzZ'122'89¢ | %Svee- z19'zs 1681 | %S0°ZL- S06'9 | 82l's %E8'Zh- 101Gy 621'92 dy
00'825°9¥1$ GLL0V'098 | %200b- 12615 SvL've | %0661- 1169 9€S's %S Zh- 910§ 602°62 Aew
Sz vee'eblLs 052.2'G88 | %E6'L€- 612'09 11€'2€ | %6y OL- vEY'9 652'S %1T bb- g8L'eS | 819°1E |  eumr
629052228 = 0S'CLELOLS | %¥Spe- €60°'29 LL6'EY %EG'6- 1850 6S6'S %LT LE- 90509 856'LE Ainp
0S'¥65'Gre$  SC'1Z8'0LLS | %SEvE- £8¥'zL ves'Ly | %8l zZ- £99°9 g8L's %8G'GE- 02869 g6c’zy | snbny
6Z'000'681$ GZ'v09'e8$ | %vl'Ge- Z06'4S 866'/E | %6ZZZ- 2859 GLL'S %8.'9¢- 0Z€1S | t£vb'ze | Jequerdes
SLvrL08L$ 00669'88% | %98'LE- | 820'8S ors'6e | %Sveez- 69%°9 256'y %z6'2€- | 695l | 88GYE | 49900
FETITEYNN|
Jaquienaq
6102 6zoz abueyd % 6102 G20z ebueyd % 6102 | Sezoz abueyd % 6102 $202 Yoy
ETEY YY) sbuissoun) [ejoy sbuisso.tn 1BYlo IV sbuissoun ony
6z'zzeZeL$ 00'669'888 | %vl've- 121'zs OPS‘'6E | %0€ ¥Z- Zrs'9 296 | %Llve- | 6.5°Gy | 88S'¥E | 1€49q0KR0
 pe0z | Seoz abuey % 202 G202 abueys o, 202 gzoz | @bueyd % 202 Gz0Z -
anuaAay sbuissol)) |ejol sbuissolq) o0 IV sbuissoln ojny 1 420100
SLvpL'08LS | 00'669'88% | %98 L€- 820°'8S OVS'6E | %SrET 69v'9 | TS6'Y | %e6Ce- | 6SSLS | 88S¥E | L€194010
6102 6Z0Z abuey) % 6102 5202 abuey) o 6102 Gzoz | @bueyD % | 610Z 6zZ0Z -
anuaADY sbuissol) |ejo) sbuissoi) JaUi0 IV sbuissoun ony | 1840300
§Z20Z ¥VIA ¥YANTTVD




£ee JesA e u) sjuswsuelduz 0oo‘olL
yoeay 0) uno) sebuassed AYUoW wnwiulpy gev'ze welba|y yum sjuswsauejduly 6102
rv6's Jueibally ynm syuswauedul 0z0z
6.2'v 8¥S |Blo1 0202
z62'0l €19 [ejol Lz0Z
2182 619 [Blol 220e
zze's LiG 1ol €20¢
60L°0 861 IBI0L v202
6692 17 6LECL %82 6. %8¢ ogzei ozce [ej0l szoe
Jaquiaoag
J2QIBAON
8.€'C 0 ve9’l %8¢ %8 %001 0 %Ly 1274" (4% 43q0100
08¥'¢ bl ecLi %8¢ %.6 %001 Zl %<cE yee'l oe Jaquaydag
eoL'e L 69S't %8¢ %l8 %001 8 %SE 66v'l le Isnbny
ov6'z Ll 60S°L %9¢ %v. %001 61 %€EE G6E‘L le Aine
S06'L € €00l %ve %€9 %001 Z %2Z 168 og aunp
86L°1L S 616 %ce %48 %001 S %02 698 e Aep
1962 8 825°lL %0¢ %28 %001 Ll %L vyl 8¢ Iudy
g62'c Sl 899°L %lE %98 %56 Ll %0€ G6S'L 6¢ yoie
6.8°L Z FAS}:) %Le %€E8 %88 Z %S¢ €20l o€ Aerugad
096 € 8y %cl %8 %E6 € %Cl 0Ly 62 Asenuep
373349
[Bjo1 ‘A9Y UON | paueideg peotld | @ouewlopad | uonadwon | "AsY UON peo i4d psue|dug ST
swll uQ

Aemury azoaaug
G20z Jeqwadaq - Auenuep
Hoday Ajajoy sebuassed

uodny [euopewiesu) Binqsusplio

e




wodsesbommm 31 1SE9IM

JI0A MAN UIBYUION 'KIUNQ) 9oUIIMET] 1§ *FUIHM

pliom ay3 o1 uoibas ays buizasuuod

1HOdHIV TYNOILYNYILNI ©dNISNIAD0
- 3ONVIOV 1V

Bw: JH1 0L
HL wz_._.émzzoo

BHOdYIV TYNOILYNYILNI wm:mmzmowo

puE DueI] UCHEBIAR pasealdu| 6ulaas Jiodite Bulauyl v AVHM 2

<
°
<
z
3
@
<
5



ECOMMUNITY
NDBEYOND

n the far North Country of New York,
Ogdensburg International Airport (OGS) is
stepping into a new era. Once known primarity
as a small regional facility, OGS is now rapidly

transforming into a key driver of connectivity and
economic development for both American and
Canadian travelers.

Passenger numbers have tripled in the past

01 3In$51°71 AWATOA

224



“13y1eam peq Ui 3)qelojwad pue Aup
Aeis s1ayaael} Bulnsua ‘Adoued 3JueIlUS papualxa
ue se 1am se sbuniayled 1eao) pue suoiiouny Jodie
y3oq Joj ,woos 1easb, siqixay e se paubisap ‘aoeds
JUIA3 AJ{Uniwod e‘aouanadxa 1abuassed Buiaoadui
‘sease uo|ssaIu0d pue Bujuaaids ys ) papuedxa ue
‘uonsabuod Buises ‘ease u-PIYd pue Aqqoy Jabie
B J9A[]3P 1]IM 1290130 Ul uonajdwiod 104 pINPayIs
pue Aemizpun Apuasind ‘aseyd puolas ayj

‘uonadwo) uonezyelaay pue uswdoiaasq
2Wou033 odily 31eisd) 591815 HI0A MaN ybnaiyy
papuny ‘UoijEAOUal JeulLIB) 3seyd-13NW € JO ISpIW
ay1 ui 51 BangsuapbQ “ausea Ul ymosH ayl yaew of

380Lnd JHL
304 ONIGTINEG :SNOILYAONIY TYNIWY¥3L

"DAIIRLLIDYIE BAIISH3-1S02 PUE JUIIDYJS I0W € Se SO0
935 OYM pucAaq pue 0lIBIUQ WOJ) SIB1BABI] 10R11R 0]
SanuILod uodiie Y3 ‘|9ARS] 43PI0G-SS0.D UO SYLIEY
woJy edwi awos 331dsaq 'siabuassed ueipeue)
pue UB3LIAWY Yylog 9A13s 03 pauoilisod Ajanbiun
s §90 ‘A&3doyiny Hod pue afipig bBingsuspbg
oy Japun diysiaumo pue Aemunt Buoy s1l ylum
‘32UBIUAUOI IN0qe 35Nl 3 US| 3IAI3S parosdwi Y

~aAnisod A1BulwiaymIsAo uaaq sey yaeqpaay ayl pue
‘ANeueisgns quin2 siaqunu Jabuassed uass aAam
'§HO woiy bulky ul asuapyuaed adoad uaalb sey
shemily azaalg Jo AIAIIDRULOD pue Ajfjiqenad ayL,
“uodiy jeuoiieusaiu| Bingsuapbg jo J0120anQ 's112.119
ardeyd sAes '21qipaJout udaq sey asuodsal ay]

Jyjen Jabuassed
pazneyaas APainb pue sauly Jnojuo) padeidal
azaa1g ‘A1eniga ul Buiuubag 1euoIIeUISIL] OpUBRLID
03 931A155 Jeuoseas Yum Buoje ‘sajjng uolbuiysem
pue ybiajey 03 s3ybny Anep Bunayo anewelp
pue ajeipawwy sem abueys ayy ‘binqsuapbp
woly A1A13s payoune] sAemily azaalg Uaym

ADY3INT MIN ‘SALNOY MIN

uawabebua Aunwwos
pue ‘quawdo)aA3p 321043I0M ‘sSauISnq osie Ing
13ae3 Ajuo J0u syioddns 1eyy Aemaied jeuoibal e
se §13s) Buluoinsad s) podiie ayj ‘uoziioy syl uo
sdiysiauiried mau pue 3131dwod Alueau suolieAoual
J0[eW YA "SIUSWISACIAI 2INIINIISBIUL JO BARM
e pue skemily 9zaaig JO 1eAlle 3yl Aq pajany Ueah

LHOdYIV TYNOILYNYILNI DHNESNIA00

m.
1
:
2

§TT

01 3N351°Z1 IWNTO0A

BUSINTIS W MASATING

VOLUME 12, I5SUE 10

‘epeURY) pue SN
33 Ul SI0HSIA 03 AJUNOD) IUDIMET 1S 9SEIMOYS
03 siauled ajeis pue jeuoibas yim syiom
Wweal wsunol Ino aby uonjowold wsunoj
pajeubisap sfaunod ayy sy aj1] jo Aynenb anbiun
s.eale ay) ssoueyua pue ymolb sabeinoaus
1eyY] )LWINI SSAUISN] JUEIGIA B JO UOIIEIID Y1
uaddns pue doyaAsp ‘FIBAINND 01 S| 92IDWWC) JO
Jaquiey) AJUno) 3dUBIMET IS 343 JO LIISSIW BY |
WOTITISTETAMAM
WO

J0 J3quiey) AJuUnod) DUIMET IS B

HANLHYd/HOANIA G3HH343u4d

JAuunwwod siyl 1o} saining buipning a4am—siybiny
Buipying 1sn{ 1ou aiam, :dn 31 SWNS s)jaLies Sy

‘Alunuoddo
1oj g0y 1euoibal e 1ng *aimiedap jo julod e asnf ou
s1 jey) Jjodae ue Bupessd st $HO AUNWLWOD Iy}
pue ‘sjooyas ‘sassauisng ‘saulte yiim Buusupied Ag




07 3055111 INNTDA

L0}

gt L E RN 10

226

VOLUME 12.t5SUE 10

g
]
=
- |
)
=
i
i
£
e
=

231

OGDENSBURG INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

flight training and exploring new uses for airport
acreage, including cargo operations and logistics
development.

“This is a pivotal time for us] Garrelts reflects. “The
decisions we make now will shape the airport for
the next decade”

A PERSONAL PASSION FOR AVIATION

For Garrelts,the work is more than professionat—it's
personal. His enthusiasm for aviation combines a
fascination with its technical complexities and an
appreciation for its human impact.

“Airports connect people. They connect fam
businesses, and communities] he says.

ies,

“That's what excites me about my role—knowing that
what we're building here at OGS makes a difference
in people’s lives”

With passenger traffic surging, renovations nearing
completion,and a vision for the future that integrates
connectivity, economic development, and workforce
growth, Ogdensburg International Airport is proving
its value as a cornerstone of the North Country.



“1sn13 pue Aujiger}as 01 yimolb syl saanqune aijeyd

‘uoj3deysiyes Jabuassed
panaiduwil os1e aAey JatLled snojaaid ay) 03 pasedwod
sajes uop|dwod pue aduewiopad swn-uo 1BybiH
"DIAITS J9A0 )00} SAemIly 9292.g aduls Ajuedyiubis
uasl aaey suoijelado (yy) uonelAe jesauab pue
Jujely 1obuassed yiog A101s syl 1191 slaquuinu ayy

SYIFGWAN YIONISSVYd ONISIY
“1pedwi J1Wouod3 13311p e siey] saiuedwol

1BI0] YU SS2U|ISNG Op pue ‘'SJUeINelsal Ino uj 1es
‘s1210y Ina uj Aes Aay3*asay a1doad Buiig am U3y,

OLBL-B2E-L48-L
ALNNOOIINIUMYILS WOFSDRIUS

§§ o DU PR SAI2DI8IL 1NO Lo sJoiw
v ‘ 2 BuypPDd s ‘Bunjly 40) SKOLL

P R Y =1

AYOA MIN NYFHLUGN NI

\e\s@%

AN3INIIM

‘saziseydwa syjauen Aemaieb e s jiodie ayj

abeasoe yodie
ajqeiieae Jo abejueape axyel pjnod jeyl suonelado
obied 0] uoijelae aaN2axa pue syybiny aesodiod
woly abues saniunlioddQ sJ031S2AU| PUE 'SISLINGY
‘s255aUISNQ O} aAlIdeIIIE 310w Auno) YlIoN ayl
Bupjew si 3iodiie ayy AnAnsuu0d Buiseasnus Ag

‘Awouo2a jeuoiBal ayi ui ajol si
uaybua13s 03 32IBLIIOT JO JaqWIBY) Yl pue‘spieoq
wsiNo} ‘'suoez|uebio Juawido)aasp JWoU03 1830
ynm A12s012 Bupjiom si §90 ‘saulbua ojwouods
ale Aayi—sqny Asuesy ueyl aiow ale syodily

1OVdWI
AVNOIS3Y ANV LINIWdOT3IAIA JIWONOD3

4o pnoud
st Ajunwiwod ay) aeyd e aq 03 §HO uem ap Mmolb
01 anuiuod ued podie Yyl buiinsua pue ‘LUojwod
1abuassedfineuonduny Inoge 2143y 'S930U 53194480
153139U353E UBY] 310LL INOGE 3B SJUsWaAcldl asay |,

1lH40dYIV TYNCILYNGILNI 9HNEGSN3IAD0

Lz

g
2
£
%
]
5
m

01 31SS1°2T IWAIOA

14

WISINESS VEW KAGATIWE

VOLUME 12 ISSUE 10

10) @JUR)SISSE |RIURUY 03 YDEDIINO JOOYIS WOl)
‘S3AIIRIIIUL JUBWdO|3ARP 3D10pIoM puedxa 0}
paau panuuod ay saybnybiy sijelies ‘uonippe uj

‘suolieziuebio
juawdolaaap pue sassausng 1ezo) buibebua
‘3213WWIO0D pUB WSLING) JO 13ALP JeuUoibal e se §90
uopisod 03 sujewals osje 1eob s119.11e9 'S3N0I MaU
ppe 03 sapluniioddo a101dxa pue skemuly azaaig Um
sdiysiauped uayibuans o3 pasu syl syuloduid osie a4

‘puewsap buisu
198U UeD Jeyl AN 1DB4 B BULIDANSP SB 1am SE 3ulpeap
13Q0320 3Y3 AG LOIIBADUDI |BUIULID] 3Y) 3)R)dW0d 0]
ysnd ajeipawwil ue se saiuoud siy saiendile aH
‘18912 a1e SHO 104 saysoud sauuen ‘peaye Bupjoo

SHLNOW 8T LX3N 3HL 404 NOISIAY
Dpeg buiwos

Wayy das)y am moy s1ey] "auo aARIsod B SI—1UdA
Aunwwod e buipuane Jo 46y azasug e Buipieoq



“When people know flights will run on time and get
them where they need to go, they choose 0OGS. That
reliability is crucial for us to compete with larger
airports in the region”

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT: INSPIRING
THE NEXT GENERATION

Like the broader aviation industry, OGS faces
challenges in staffing and workforce development.
The shortage of pilots, mechanics,and ground staff
is well-documented, and Garrelts sees education as
the solution.

“There aren’t enough schools with aviation degrees
nearby,which makes it harder to attract companies to
the area; he explains.“So we're taking the initiative
to engage with local schools and introduce students
to aviation careers”

These outreach efforts highlight not just piloting,
but alse the many other career paths available in
aviation—maintenance, ground handling, security,
and operations. Financial assistance programs for
flight training are also being explored, making
aviation more accessible to young people who might
not otherwise consider it.

©1 30551 21 3WNT0A

2
=
I

B IvYTEA -

28

YOLUME 12 {SSUE 10

§ VEEW MACATINT

OGDENSBURG INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

The goal is clear: build a local talent pipeline that
supports both the airport and the region’s economic
development.

THE CHALLENGES OF REGIONAL AVIATION

While the growth at OGS is encouraging, Garrelts
acknowledges the challenges that remain. The pilot
turnover rate at regional airlines continues to be
high, as many pilots move on to major carriers once
they reach required flight hours.

This dynamic has long shaped the role of regional
carriers, serving as both training grounds and
stepping stones in the aviation career ladder. To
maintain stability, OGS facuses on maintaining
strong partnerships and reliable operations, ensuring
passengers continue to choose the airport despite
industry-wide chaltenges.

“People have optiens; Garrelts says. “We need to
make sure that every interaction at OGS—whether it's



Port of Ogdensburg

- NEW YORK

Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority

October Port Activity

. Sum of
# of units
Tonnage

Vessels

Inbound - -

Outbound
Trucks

Inbound

Outbound 184 5,840
Rail

Inbound 11 918

Outbound

Grand Total 195 6,758
Annual Summary

Salt
Outbound 102994.1
iInbound 80659.1
Grain
Outbound 5465.16
Inbound 4739.235




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
BUILDING OCCUPANCY REPORT
November 6, 2025

Building

% Occupied

Commerce Park Camgus

Total SF Available Occupied

Tenant

1

74%

30,000

7,675

7,356
3,626
1,650
424
300
211
8,758

Lincare

Oburg Parcel Service / AB Tech.
Med-Eng

Miracle Ear / Quality Hearing
West End Asset Management
KDM Analytics

Non-Rentable

35%

15,000

9,744

4,860
256
140

AN Deringer
5G Technologies USA
Non-Rentable

49%

20,000

10,143

4,892
2,324
1,516
850
275

T-Base Communications
Day Automation

DASNY

Matrix Instruments
Non-Rentable

100%

30,000

28,825
1,175

Strader-Ferris
Non-Rentable

11

100%

40,000

20,000
20,000

Strader-Ferris
Frank Ralphs, Inc.

12

100%

11,200

8,776
2,424

T-Base Communications
NYS Legal Service

14

100%

24,000

23,220
780

Med-Eng
Non-Rentable

84%

170,200

27,562

142,638

Page 1




Bridge Administration Building

Suite % Occupied  Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
BAB 98% 5316 120
103 536 OBPA Economic Development
104 1,054 SUNY IT
201A 120 0 Vacant
201B 140 Cortech/Penski
201C 368 OBPA Executive Director
204 1,689 Stephens Media Group
205 207 Griffith/Lambert
206 182 Griffith/Lambert
207A 170 Dan Dodge
207B 220 Mack Giobal Engineering
208 158 Barbara Pleet
209 180 Knudsen Systems
210 292 Glenda Jones
98% 5,316 240 5,196
Port of Ogdensburg
Building % Occupied  Total SF  Available Occupied Tenant
P2 100% 30,000 0 30,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
P3 100% 20,000 0 19,607 Ingredion - Grain Storage
393 NYOG Office
P4 100% 15,000 0 15,000 Corning
P5 33% 40,000 26,667 13,333 Ingredion - Grain Storage
P6 40% 20,000 12,000 8,000 Port Operations
P8 100% 23,000 0 23,000 Compass Minerals/Thawrox
Yard 100% 43,560 0 43,560 Steel Beam Storage
80% 191,560 38,667 152,893
Ogdensburg International Airport
Building % Occupied _ Total SF Available Occupied Tenant
Terminal 100% 10,800 0 10,800 TSA/Trego-Dugan
Hangar 100% 3,672 0 3,672 OGS Equipment Storage
GSE 100% 6,324 0 3,162 Trego-Dugan
3,162 OGS Equipment Storage
T-Hangar 82% 11,550 2,072
1 1,036 Robertson
2 1,108 Richardson
3 1,036 Proven
4 1,036 Weston
5 1,036 0 Vacant
6 1,036 Bogardus
7 1,036 Kelly
8 1,036 Tate
9 1,108 Oudheusden
10 1,036 0 Vacant
1,046 Mechanical / Operations Storage
94% 32,346 4,144 30,274

Page 2



OGS Great Room, Event Coordinator — November 2025 Board Report

Planning the ribbon cutting event, still waiting on a date and time

. Zoom meeting with Salesman for Sales program demonstrations, trying to narrow
down which one to pick

. Completed budgets for 2026 fiscal year

. Inthe process of planning St. Lawrence County Chamber Tourism dinner next year

Finished the Request for Proposal for OGS Great Room Food Service and/or Event
Catering Vendor

. Visited local businesses with a portfolio of the RFP and renderings for the café

. Started meeting with companies to coordinate advertising and produce a commercial
once the Great Room opens.



OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
NOVEMBER 06, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem A. General Administration
1) Approval of Management/Confidential Salary Schedule

REPORT:

The Management/Confidential Compensation Policy, as approved in the Employee Handbook at the
October 07, 2021 Board Meeting, states that the annual adjustment factor will be set annually by
the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority Board of Directors at the December Board Meeting each

year.

In order to have a complete Budget Packet ready for a Board vote in December, staff requests that
the Board adopt salary increases for Management/Confidential employees at the November Board

Meeting.

It is recommended by the Board of Directors and Executive Director that salary increases be given
to Management/Confidential Employees as per the agreed upon schedule for calendar year 2026.

Salary increases will be retroactive to the 15t of January upon completion of employee evaluations.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority approves
salary increases for Management/Confidential Employees per the agreed upon schedule for

calendar year 2026.
INITIATOR / PREPARER  Patricia Nisco APPROVED BY: Mu/

MOTION MADEBY  {{\eQ0un J. - Wi Hor Unanimous Yes [uf No

SECONDED BY (DON'C‘ D. Kina Abstained




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
November 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item A. General Administration
2) Approval of Administration Building Tenant Entry Door Upgrade

REPORT:

The Tenant Entry Door at the Administration Building no longer meets energy efficiency or
aesthetic standards. The replacement of the Entry Door is necessary to maintain functionality,
thermal efficiency, and appearance of the property. The following three bids were received for the
project.

Northern Glass $11,750.00
Sparx Construction $11,630.00
Colton Glass $10,455.00

The scope of work for this upgrade includes: demolition of existing door, preparing the opening,
installing new door and related hardware, as well as ensuring the function of all components to
complete the project.

Staff reviewed the details of this purchase and recommends purchasing this service from Colton
Glass & Mirror, Inc. for the amount of $10,455.00

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to execute a
Purchase Order with Colton Glass & Mirror, Inc. to upgrade the Tenant Entry Door at Administration
Building, a total cost not to exceed $10,455.00.

INITIATOR/PREPARER: James D. Chase APPROVED BY ﬁ—/ 'ér,(_,

MOTION PASSED BY: N (0 \f e W\tY\C“ 1 Unanimous: v es No
SECONDED BY; f\(\(gm\ T M. Wihton Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
NOVEMBER 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item B. Ogdensburg-Prescott International Bridge
1. Approval of Lease Supplement No. 7 with Barbara Pleet

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated Lease Supplement No. 7 with Barbara Pleet for 158 square feet of office
space in Suite 208 of the Bridge Administration Building for a two (2) year period commencing
November 1, 2025 and terminating October 31, 2027 at a rate of $21.00 per square foot
equaling $276.50 per month, $6,636.00 for the two (2) year period, inclusive of utilities.

All other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute Lease
Supplement No. 7 with Barbara Pleet for 158 square feet of office space in Suite 208 of the
Bridge Administration Building for a two (2) year period commencing November 1, 2025 and
terminating October 31, 2027 at a rate of $21.00 per square foot equaling $276.50 per month,
$6,636.00 for the two (2) year period, inclusive of utilities, and be it;

remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other terms and conditions of the original Lease Agreement shall |

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk ~ APPROVED BY: % %L/

MOTION PASSED BY: DOWicl D Kma Unanimous: Yes No [

SECONDED BY: (YH’Q](XV\ J ‘M-Whlrjr"'()Y\Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
NOVEMBER 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem C. Commerce Park Campus
1. Approval of New Lease Agreement with Phillip MacGibbon LLC DBA Bluebird. |

REPORT:

| Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Phillip MacGibbon LLC DBA Bluebird for
1,217 square feet of café and office space in Building 1 of the Commerce Park Campus for a
one (1) year period commencing December 1, 2025 and terminating November 31, 2026 at a
‘ rate of $1,500.00 per month, $18,000.00 for the one (1) year period, exclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

| RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a nhew
Lease Agreement with Phillip MacGibbon LLC DBA Bluebird for 1,217 square feet of café and
office space in Building 1 of the Commerce Park Campus for a one (1) year period commencing
December 1, 2025 and terminating November 31, 2026 at a rate of $1,500.00 per month,
$18,000.00 for the one (1) year period, exclusive of utilities.

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk ~ APPROVED BY: /%%M
— Lo
MOTION PASSED BY: W}f 90)\1/) J M —w\y\'%nanimous: Yes 7 No [

SECONDED BY:\ \¢ Dl “Terpninell: Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
NOVEMBER 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem D. Ogdensburg International Airport
1. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Pete Bogardus

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Pete Bogardus for T-Hangar No. 6 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a six (6) month period commencing January 1, 2026 and
terminating June 30, 2026 at a rate of $240.00 per month, $1,440.00 for the six (6) month
period, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a new |
Lease Agreement with Pete Bogardus for T-Hangar No. 6 at the Ogdensburg International

Airport for a six (6) month period commencing January 1, 2026 and terminating June 30, 2026 at |
a rate of $240.00 per month, $1,440.00 for the six (6) month period, inclusive of utilities. |

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVED BY: /%/%M/

MOTION PAsSED BY: Nicole Teyminell/ Unanimous: Yes 0 No W

SECONDED BY:J iy Quirld-Bekmian apstained By: Megan TM-Whitton




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
NOVEMBER 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

_ATg_er_ﬁa Item D. Ogdensburg International Airport
2. Approval of T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Keith Weston

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Keith Weston for T-Hangar No. 4 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing October 1, 2025 and
terminating September 30, 2026 at a rate of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00 for the one (1) year
period, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a new
Lease Agreement with Keith Weston for T-Hangar No. 4 at the Ogdensburg International Airport
for a one (1) year period commencing October 1, 2025 and terminating September 30, 2026 at a
| rate of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVED BY: % %

MoTION PASSED BY: Nicole Terminell] Unanimous: Yes
SECONDED BY: Mfgcm T M- WhiHon  Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
NOVEMBER 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item D. Ogdensburg international Airport
3. Approval of T-Hangar L ease Agreement with Bird Tate

REPORT:

Staff has negotiated a new Lease Agreement with Bird Tate for T-Hangar No. 8 at the
Ogdensburg International Airport for a one (1) year period commencing January 1, 2026 and
terminating December 31, 2026 at a rate of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00 for the one (1) year
period, inclusive of utilities.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to execute a new
Lease Agreement with Bird Tate for T-Hangar No. 8 at the Ogdensburg International Airport for a
one (1) year period commencing January 1, 2026 and terminating December 30, 2026 at a rate
of $240.00 per month, $2,880.00 for the one (1) year period, inclusive of utilities.

INITATOR/PREPARER: Anthony Adamczyk APPROVED BY: ,%L%W

MOTION PASSED BY: DCWI C' 3 M l\na Unanimous: Yes No O

secoNDED BY: Nicole Tersm |/ Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
November 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem E. Port of Ogdensburg
1) Approval of Cost for Returning Incorrectly Loaded Metal Beam with Texas Iron and
Metal Company Inc.

REPORT:

During the course of fulfilling a metal beam order, an incorrectly loaded metal beam resulted in additional
cost related to unloading, replacement, and corrective handlings. A breakdown of the cost is listed:

Round trip delivery + return to New York: $7,837.35
Customs clearance (incoming load): $142.50
Customs clearance (outgoing load): $147.48
Total requested $8,127.73

A new procedure has been set for all beams, crates, or cargo similar in nature to prevent any future
incidents. This is a necessary expense to ensure compliance with safety, quality, and project
requirements. Staff reviewed the details of this purchase and recommends purchasing this service from
Texas Iron and Metal Company Inc., a total cost not to exceed $8,127.73.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Purchase Order
with Texas Iron and Metal Co. Inc. to resolve the cost associated with an incorrectly loaded metal beam, a
total cost not to exceed $8,127.73.

INITIATOR/PREPARER: James D. Chase APPROVED BY //yéé ) %W'\—/
MOTION PASSED BY: M ND\(’ l{! !Hj‘[)f I I {  Unanimous: V%s No

SECONDED BY: bO\N id D - ing Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
November 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem E. Port of Ogdensburg Safety Upkeep
2) Approval of Excavator and Mulching Attachment Rental with Anderson
Equipment

REPORT:

The Port of Ogdensburg Safety Upkeep Project involves the clearing of trees and brush along the
surrounding area of the Port of Ogdensburg and areas abutting neighboring properties for visual
safety. In addition, the project will keep the area of Wheathouse Bay easier to patrol by the OBPA
and City Authorities when necessary. Staff has obtained two quotes from four of the companies
contacted. The two companies were unable to provide a quote due to the specialized mulching
attachment needed to safely conduct the brush and tree clearing. Below are the quotes received
for the two-week rental.

Anderson Equipment $6,620.00
Mid Country Machinery $9,800.00

Staff reviewed the details of this purchase and recommends purchasing this service from Anderson
Equipment, a total cost not to exceed $6,620.00

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to execute a
Purchase Order with Anderson Equipment to remove trees and brush along the Port of Ogdensburg
and areas abutting neighboring properties, a total cost not to exceed $6,620.00

P pz)
INITIATOR/PREPARER: James D. Chase APPROVED BY ,W %

MOTION PASSED BY: DYOW1d D .\Lmq Unanimous: WAes No
SECONDED BY: W\M\Jaﬂ J. M. WhiHon abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
November 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda Item E. Port of Ogdensburg
3) Approval of Cost to Fix the Damaged Port Security Fence

REPORT:

The chain link and barbed wire Security Fence at the Port was damaged by a vehicle and must be
repaired to adhere to US Coast Guard standards. Contractors were contacted to provide a quote and
schedule to make the repairs. Only one contractor was able to provide a quote and confirm their schedule
to make the repairs necessary in a timely matter. Deragon’s Property Management Renovations provided
their quote of $6,400.00 to replace the damaged Security Fence.

Purchasing these services from Deragon’s Property Management Renovations is in the best interest of
the Authority to ensure compliance with the US Coast Guard and ensure safe operations at the Port of
Ogdensburg. Staff reviewed the details of this purchase and recommends purchasing this service from
Deragon’s Property Management Renovations, a total cost not to exceed $6,400.00.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Director of Operations is hereby authorized and directed to execute a Purchase Order
with Deragon’s Property Management Renovations to resolve the cost associated with the damage to the
Port Security Fence, a total cost not to exceed $6,400.00

INITIATOR/PREPARER: James D. Chase APPROVED BY _/%%
MOTION PASSED BY:[!kqgm 1. M- WhiFhsrunanimous: '4es

SECONDED BY: immd i). K m% Abstained By:




OGDENSBURG BRIDGE & PORT AUTHORITY
November 6, 2025 BOARD MEETING

Agenda ltem H._ OBPA Network Equipment and IT Service Provider
1) Approval of Replacement of Network Equipment and IT Service Provider

REPORT:

WHEREAS, the Ogdensburg Bridge & Port Authority’s Network Equipment needs replacement in
order to provide enhanced security, improve internal controls, and allow access to resources
needed to better maximize efficiency. OBPA'’s current IT service provider has relocated to Florida
and is no longer available as needed. When asked to release our network credentials, we were
informed that the credentials are not accessible because they are proprietary in his name and
grouped with other customers. The current IT set up requires OBPA to be signed into multiple
interfaces and creates exposure risk. This IT service upgrade will allow OBPA to have stronger
internal controls over our network at a lower cost.

OBPA staff requested quotes from two other companies, Clear Data Solutions and Computer
Center and neither Company responded. Currently, OBPA prepays its IT provider $5,750.00 for 50
hours at $115.00 per hour. The last purchase made was in June of 2025 and those hours have
been depleted. The cost to move forward with the Adirondack Techs, LLC proposal is $9.805.80,
representing an added cost of $4,055.80.

| Adirondack Techs, LLC [ $9,805.80 |

OBPA staff have reviewed the details of this purchase and recommends Adirondack Techs, LLC to
replace the Network Equipment and serve as the new IT Service Provider.

RESOLUTION:

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director of the Ogdensburg Bridge and Port Authority is hereby
authorized to execute all necessary purchase orders, agreements and related documents with
Adirondack Techs, LLC to replace OBPA’s Network Equipment and enter into a monthly service
agreement for onsite IT Technician Support at an hourly rate of $115.00 and remote IT support at an
hourly rate of $85.00.

_i y 4
INITIATOR/PREPARER: Andrea Loran APPROVED BY: M&M

MOTION PASSED BY: (Y\eqom J.M . whi T hous: VYEs No
seconpep BY:_Nicole Teconinell)  Abstained BY:




\

A\dirondack
Techs

Odgensburg Bridge and Port
Authority

1 Bridge Plaza

Odgensburg

Adirondack Techs, LLC

30 Town Barn Rd

Saint Regis Falls, NY 12980

us

+5454357
CustomerService@AdirondackTechs.com

ESTIMATE #

1974

YVATE

10/30/2025

****Replacement of Network Equipment****
Port Plaza Location

Product:Sales

Unifi Dream Machine SE (Firewall/Router
Replacement)

Replaces sonicwall firewall and linksys
routers

Product:Sales

Unifi 48 Port Switch PoE

(Replaces Aruba Networks 48 Port Switch)
Product:Sales

Network Rack Enclosure

(Wall mounted enclosure to mount
equipment and get off shelf)

Server Room Main Building Location

Product:Sales
Unifi 48 Port Switch PoE
(Replaces 2 24 Port Netgear Switches)

Product:Sales
Unifi Wifi 7 Access Point

Product:Sales
USW-Aggregation (Replacement for
Basement Netgear and Media Convertros)

Product:Sales
OM2 SC to LC Patch Cables

Product:Sales
DAC Cable

Product:Sales
RJ45 Jacks, Patch Panel, Patch Cables,
Accessories, Misc Parts for Cleanup

10

673.65

1,763.00

299.00

1,753.00

265.00

363.15

10.00

22.00

400.00

Estimate

673.65T

1,753.00T

299.00T

1,753.00T

1,060.00T

363.15T

100.00T
44.00T

400.00T



Product:Sales
LC Multimode Fiber SFP

Project Scope
Services:Installation Technician

****Replace all networking gear for security
posture****

-Make notes of all networking details as it
sits today and replicate replacement in new

equipment to minimize downtime and issues

to be encountered

-Install wall mount rack to enclose
networking equipment in Port Plaza

-Install 48 Port Switches

-Install cabling for access points
-Install access points in ceiling to distribute
wifi throughout building

-Replace fiber media converters in
basement with aggregate switch and patch
in fiber with SFP’s

-Configure Unifi Dream machine

-Document all networking details and create
hand off sheet to appropriate person

-Remove all unnecessary
cable/accessories/switches

-Cleanup network cables and do proper
cable management of equipment

Please note, 50% down is due at the time of
scheduling & 50% is due upon completion.

Accepted By

24

SUBTOTAL
TAX
TOTAL

Accepted Date

135.00

95.00

£

1,080.00T

2,280.00T

9,805.80
78446

$10,590.26



K Y

._)k

Techs

Pricing and Service Schedule

IT Technician Servi
IT Technician - emergency, after hours

Network Services

Network Device Service

Network Assessment - 2 hrs min., depending on numbers of PC's

Maint Servi Device - Monthl
PC/Server - Monthly Service and Maintenance

Anti-Virus Protection - Data Protection - Services -Monthly

DVR/Camera Services
DVR/Camera MSR

dirondack

$125.00

$15.00

$115.00

$25.00

$15.00

per Hour

per Device

per Hour

per Device

per Device



Hosted Services - Monthly per User/Device

Cloud Services

Monthly per
Hosted Services - Azure Active Directory Premium P1 (NCE) $10.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - Azure Information Protection Premium Plan 1 $4.00 User/Device
Phone Services

Monthly per

Fax Services
Monthly per
Hosted Services - Fax Line $30.00 User/Device
Secure Password Services
Monthly per
Hosted Services - Keeper MSP - MSR $4.75 User/Device
Microsoft Office
- Monthly per
Hiosted Sefiices - M365 BLS|fess Basie
Hosted Services - M365 Business Basic (NCE) $8.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - M365 Business Standard $16.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - M365 Business Standard (NCE) $16.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - Microsoft 365 Apps for Business $12.50 User/Device
Hosted Services - Microsoft 365 Apps for Business (NCE) $13.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - Microsoft 365 Business Standard + Online Backup $19.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - Microsoft 365 Office Protect $1.60 User/Device
ces - Mierosoft 865 Office Pratect Email Security $15.00 UseyiDevice
Hosted Services - Microsoft 365 Project Plan 1 (NCE) $15.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - Microsoft 365 Project Plan 3 $41.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - Microsoft 365 Project Plan 3 (NCE) $46.50 User/Device
Hosted Services - Microsoft Defender for Business (NCE) $5.00 User/Device
Hosted Services - Microsoft Office 365 E3 $35.00 User/Device

We also offer Alarm Monitoring and Access Control Services. Please let us know if you are interested.
We can send you pricing for it per request.



